

**California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13055**

ARTICLE 4. SCHEDULE OF FILING FEES FOR FILING AND PROCESSING PERMIT APPLICATIONS AND OTHER FILINGS

§ 13055. Fees.

(a) Permit filing and processing fees ~~Filing fees for processing coastal development permit applications~~ shall be as follows:

- (1) ~~Two hundred dollars (\$200)~~ \$2,500 for any development qualifying for an administrative permit.
- (2) (A) For up to 4 detached, single-family residences ~~a single family residence~~, the fee for each residence shall be based on the square footage of the proposed residence as shown in the following table:

Square Footage of Proposed Residence	Fee
1500 or less	\$250 <u>\$3,000</u>
1501 to 5000	\$500 <u>\$4,500</u>
5001 or more <u>to 10,000</u>	\$1000 <u>\$6,000</u>
<u>10,001 or more</u>	<u>\$7,500</u>

(B) For more than 4 detached, single-family residences, the fee shall be as follows:

- (1) For residences of 1500 square feet or less, the fee shall be \$15,000 or \$1,000 per residence, whichever is greater, but not to exceed \$100,000;
- (2) For residences of 1501 to 5000 square feet, the fee shall be \$22,500 or \$1,500 per residence, whichever is greater, but not to exceed \$100,000;
- (3) For residences of 5001 to 10,000 square feet, the fee shall be \$30,000 or \$2,000 per residence, whichever is greater, but not to exceed \$100,000;
- (4) For residences of 10,001 or more square feet, the fee shall be \$37,500 or \$2,500 per residence, whichever is greater, but not to exceed \$100,000.

For developments that include residences of different sizes, the fee shall be based upon the average square footage of all the residences.

(C) As used herein, the term “square footage” includes gross internal floor space of the main house and attached garage(s), plus any detached structures (e.g., guest houses, detached bedrooms, in-law units, garages, barns, art studios, tool sheds, and other outbuildings.)

**California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13055**

~~(3) Six hundred dollars (\$600) for lot line adjustments, or for divisions of land where there are single family residences already built and only one new lot is created by the division of~~

~~(3) (A) For multi-family units up to 4 attached residential units the fee shall be \$7,500. up to four (4) units.~~

~~(4) (B) For more than 4 attached residential units, the fee shall be Two thousand dollars (\$2,000)\$10,000 or one hundred twenty dollars (\$120)\$750 per unit, whichever is greater, but not to exceed twenty thousand dollars (\$20,000)\$50,000. for multi-unit residential development greater than four (4) units.~~

~~(5) All residential projects (whether single or multi-unit) that include more than 75-50 cubic yards of grading shall be subject to an additional fee of two hundred dollars (\$200) as shown on the following table:-~~

<u>Cubic Yards of Grading</u>	<u>Fee</u>
<u>51 to 100</u>	<u>\$500</u>
<u>101 to 1000</u>	<u>\$750</u>
<u>1001 to 10,000</u>	<u>\$1,000</u>
<u>10,001 to 100,000</u>	<u>\$1,250</u>
<u>100,001 or more</u>	<u>\$1,500</u>

~~_____ This fee does not apply to residential projects that qualify for administrative permits.~~

~~(6) For office, commercial, convention, or industrial (including energy facilities as defined in Public Resources Code section 30107) development, and for all other development not otherwise identified in this section, the fee shall be based upon based upon either the gross square footage as shown in (5)(A) or the development cost as shown in the following table: (5)(B) whichever is greater.~~

~~(A) Fees based upon gross square footage shall be as follows:~~

<u>Square Footage of Proposed Proposed Development</u>	<u>Fee</u>
<u>1000 or less</u>	<u>\$500\$5,000</u>
<u>1001 to 10,000</u>	<u>\$2,000\$10,000</u>
<u>10,001 to 25,000</u>	<u>\$4,000\$15,000</u>
<u>25,001 to 50,000</u>	<u>\$8,000\$20,000</u>
<u>50,001 to 100,000</u>	<u>\$12,000\$30,000</u>
<u>100,001 or more</u>	<u>\$20,000\$50,000</u>

~~(7) Twenty thousand dollars (\$20,000) for major energy production and fuel processing facilities, including but not limited to, the construction or major modification of offshore petroleum production facilities, tanker terminals and mooring facilities, generating plants, petroleum refineries, LNG gassification facilities and the like.~~

**California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13055**

~~(8) (B)(1) For changes in intensity of use; for office, commercial, convention or industrial development not otherwise identified in this section; and for all other development not otherwise identified in this section; the fee shall be based on the development cost as shown in the following table. Fees based upon development cost shall be as follows:~~

Development Cost	Fee
<u>\$50,000 or less</u>	<u>\$3,000</u>
\$50,001 to \$100,000 or less	\$600 <u>\$6,000</u>
\$100,001 to \$500,000	<u>\$2,000</u> <u>\$10,000</u>
\$500,001 to 1,250,000	<u>\$4,000</u> <u>\$20,000</u>
\$1,250,001 to 2,500,000	<u>\$8,000</u> <u>\$25,000</u>
\$2,500,001 to 5,000,000	<u>\$12,000</u> <u>\$30,000</u>
\$5,000,001 or more <u>to \$10,000,000</u>	<u>\$20,000</u> <u>\$50,000</u>
<u>\$10,000,001 to \$100,000,000</u>	<u>\$100,000</u>
<u>\$100,000,001 or more</u>	<u>\$250,000</u>

(2) As used herein, the term “development cost” includes all expenditures, including the cost for planning, engineering, architectural, and other services, made or to be made for designing the project plus the estimated cost of construction of all aspects of the project both inside and outside the Commission’s jurisdiction.

~~(96) Two hundred dollars (\$200)~~\$1,000 for immaterial amendments to coastal development permits, and fifty percent (50%) of the permit fee that would currently apply to the permitted development for material amendments to coastal development permits.

~~(107) Two hundred dollars (\$200)~~\$1,000 for emergency permits. A fee paid for an emergency permit shall be credited toward the fee charged for the follow-up coastal development permit.

~~(11) Two hundred dollars (\$200) for extensions and reconsiderations of coastal development permits for single family dwellings.~~

~~(12) Four hundred dollars (\$400) for extensions and reconsiderations of all other coastal development permits.~~

~~(13) Two hundred dollars (\$200) for a "de minimis" waiver of a coastal development permit application pursuant to section 30624.7 of the Coastal Act and for a waiver pursuant to sections 13250(c) and 13253(c) of these regulations.~~

~~(14) One hundred dollars (\$100) for a second continuance and any subsequent continuance requested by the applicant and approved by the commission. There is no fee charged for the first continuance requested by the applicant.~~

~~(158) Five hundred dollars (\$500)~~ \$2,500 for temporary events that require a permit, unless the application is scheduled on the administrative calendar, in which case the fee shall be ~~two hundred dollars (\$200)~~\$1,000.

California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13055

(b) Filing fees for filings other than coastal development permit applications shall be as follows:

(1) (A) \$500 for either an extension or reconsideration of coastal development permit for a single-family dwellings.

(B) \$1,000 for an extension or reconsideration of any other coastal development permit.

(2) \$500 for a "de minimis" waiver of a coastal development permit application pursuant to Public Resources Code section 30624.7 and for a waiver pursuant to sections 13250(c) and 13253(c) of this title.

(3) \$250 for any written confirmation of exemption from permit requirements of Public Resources Code section 30600.

(4) \$1,000 for any continuance requested by the applicant, except the first continuance.

(5) The filing fee for:

(A) any certification of consistency that is submitted to the Commission pursuant to sections 307(c)(3)(A) or (B) of the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 USC section 1456(c)(3)(A),(B)), or

(B) any appeal to the Commission pursuant to Public Resources Code sections 30602 or 30603(a)(5) by an applicant of a denial of a coastal development permit application

shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of subsection (a).

(6) The request for a boundary determination pursuant to either section 13255.1 or 13576(c) shall be accompanied by a filing and processing fee of \$250. For a request for a boundary determination pursuant to section 13255.1 or 13576(c)(2) that pertains to two or more parcels, the fee shall be paid on a per parcel basis.

(7) The request for a boundary adjustment pursuant to section 13255.2 shall be accompanied by a filing and processing fee of \$5,000.

(c) The fees established in this section shall be increased annually by an amount calculated on the basis of the percentage change from the year in which this provision becomes effective in the California Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers as determined by the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code Section 2212. The increased fee amounts shall become effective on July 1 of each year. The new fee amounts shall be rounded to the nearest dollar.

(d) Fees for an after-the-fact (ATF) permits application shall be ~~doubled~~ five times the amount specified in section (a) unless such added increase ~~is s-are waived-reduced~~ by the Executive

California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13055

Director when it is determined that ~~the permit could be processed by staff without significant additional review time resulting from the processing of the violation either:~~

- (1) the ATF permit application can be processed by staff without significant additional review time (as compared to the time required for the processing of a regular permit,) or
- (2) the owner did not undertake the development for which the owner is seeking the ATF permit,

but in no case shall such reduced fees be less than double the amount specified in section (a) above. For applications that include both ATF development and development that has not yet occurred, the ATF fee shall apply only to the ATF development. In addition, payment of an ATF fee shall not relieve any persons from fully complying with the requirements of Division 20 of the Public Resources Code or of any permit granted thereunder or from any penalties imposed pursuant to Chapter 9 of Division 20 of the Public Resources Code.

~~(ee) Where a development consists of a land division including, but not limited to, lot line adjustments or issuance of a conditional certificate of compliance pursuant to Government Code section 66499.35(b), each lot shall be considered as one single family residence for the purpose of calculating the application fee the fee shall be \$3,000 for each of the first four lots, plus \$500 for each additional lot. If an application includes both subdivision and the construction of residences, the fee shall be based upon the construction of the proposed residences with no additional fee for the subdivision.~~ Conversion to condominiums shall be considered a division of the land.

~~(fd) Except as provided in subsection (e) above, if~~ If different types of developments are included in one permit application, the fee shall be the sum of the fees that would apply if each development was proposed in a separate application. However, in no case shall the fee for residential development exceed \$100,000 and in no case shall the fee for all other development ~~such application exceed twenty thousand dollars (\$20,000)~~ \$250,000.

~~(ge)~~ In addition to the above fees, the commission may require the applicant to reimburse it for any additional reasonable expenses incurred in ~~its consideration of~~ processing the permit application, including the costs of providing public notice.

~~(hf)~~ The fees specified in sections (a) and (b) may be modified under the following circumstances:

- (1) The executive director shall waive the application fee where requested by resolution of the commission.
- (2) The executive director of the commission may waive the filing and processing fee in full or in part for an application for a housing development that contains housing units the occupancy of which by persons of low or moderate income as defined in Health and Safety Code section 50093 is assured for the period of time specified in Government Code section 65915(c)(1).

California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13055

(3) The executive director of the commission may waive the filing and processing fee in full or in part for an application that displays extraordinary characteristics which substantially benefit coastal resources, such as sustainable site and building design, water and energy efficiency, habitat protection and public transportation elements.

(ig) The required fee shall be paid in full at the time an application is filed. However, applicants for an administrative permit shall pay an additional fee after filing if the executive director or the commission determines that the application cannot be processed as an administrative permit. The additional fee shall be the amount necessary to increase the total fee paid to the regular fee. The regular fee is the fee determined pursuant to ~~sections (a)(2)–(15), (b)–(f) above~~ this section. In addition, if the executive director or the commission determines that changes in the nature or description of the project that occur after the initial filing result in a change in the amount of the fee required pursuant to this section, the applicant shall pay the amount necessary to change the total fee paid to the fee so determined. If the change results in a decreased fee, a refund will be due only if no significant staff review time has been expended on the original application. If the change results in an increased fee, the additional fee shall be paid before the permit application is scheduled for hearing by the commission. If the fee is not paid prior to commission action on the application, the commission shall impose a special condition of approval of the permit. Such special condition shall require payment of the additional fee prior to issuance of the permit.

**California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13169**

ARTICLE 6. EXTENSION OF PERMITS

§ 13169. Extension of Permits.

(a) Prior to the time that commencement of development under a permit granted by either the regional commission or the commission must occur under the terms of the permit or Section 13156, the applicant may apply to the executive director of the commission for an extension of time not to exceed an additional one year period. The executive director shall not accept the application unless it is accompanied by all of the following:

- (1) evidence of an approved, unexpired permit,
- (2) evidence of the applicant's legal interest in the property involved in the permit,
- (3) the fee specified in section 13055(b)(1) of these regulations, and
- (4) stamped envelopes addressed to each person specified in section 13054 of these regulations and each person who testified, orally or in writing at prior permit hearing(s).

(b) For those applications accepted, the executive director shall determine whether there are changed circumstances that may affect the consistency of the development with the policies of Chapter 3 of the Coastal Act or with a certified local coastal program, if applicable. If the executive director determines that there are no changed circumstances that may affect consistency of the development, he or she shall mail notice of such determination including a summary of the procedures set forth in this section to all parties the executive director has reason to know may be interested in the application including all persons identified in section 13054 of these regulations and all persons who participated in previous permit hearings. The applicant shall post such notice at the project site within three (3) days of the executive director's mailing of the notice to interested parties. The executive director shall also report the determination to the commission to provide the commission with an opportunity to object to the executive director's determination. The time for commencement of development shall be extended for one year from the expiration date of the permit if both of the following occur:

- (1) no written objection to the executive director's determination is received within 10 working days after mailing notice, and
- (2) three commissioners do not object to the executive director's determination.

(c) If the executive director received a written objection to his or her determination but concludes that the objection does not identify changed circumstances that may affect the consistency of the development with the Coastal Act or a certified local coastal program, if applicable, the executive director shall report this conclusion to the commission at the same time that the executive director reports the determination to the commission in accordance with subsection (b) above. The executive director shall provide a copy of the letter(s) of objection to the commission with the report. If three commissioners object to

California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13169

the extension on grounds that there may be changed circumstances that affect consistency, the executive director shall schedule the extension for hearing(s) in accordance with subsection (d) below. If three commissioners do not object to the extension, the time for commencement of development shall be extended for one year from the expiration date of the permit.

(d) If the executive director receives an objection to his or her determination and concludes that the objection identifies changed circumstances that may affect the consistency of the development or if the executive director determines that due to changed circumstances the proposed development may not be consistent, the application shall be scheduled for a hearing on whether there are changed circumstances that affect consistency. The executive director shall provide notice of such hearing to any person(s) the executive director has reason to know would be interested in the matter. The executive director shall prepare a report for the hearing that describes any pertinent changes in conditions or circumstances relating to each requested permit extension.

(1) If three (3) commissioners determine that there are changed circumstances that affect consistency of the development with Chapter 3 policies of the Coastal Act or with a certified local coastal program if applicable, the extension shall be denied and upon payment of the filing fee specified in section 13055(a) of these regulations for an application for a coastal development permit the development shall be set for a full hearing of the commission pursuant to Subchapter 1 of these regulations. However, except as otherwise provided in the preceding sentence, the applicant shall not be required to file a new permit application but instead, shall submit any information that the executive director determines is necessary to evaluate the effect of the changed circumstances.

(2) If no such determination is made by three commissioners, the time for commencement of development shall be extended for one year from the expiration date of the permit.

(e) Any extensions applied for prior to the expiration of the permit shall automatically extend the time for commencement of development until such time as the commission has acted upon the extension request; provided, however, that the applicant shall not undertake development during the period of automatic extension provided in this section.

(f) The procedures specified in this section shall apply to extensions of all permits approved by the commission, including those approved on appeal, on the consent calendar and as administrative permits.

**California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13255**

Subchapter 8. Minor Adjustments to the Coastal Zone Boundary

ARTICLE 1. BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT AND BOUNDARY DETERMINATION REQUESTS

§ 13255.0. Scope.

This subchapter shall govern (a) the request for a determination of the precise location of a particular parcel or area of land in relation to the boundary of the coastal zone, and (b) the request, review and implementation of proposed minor adjustments to the inland boundary of the coastal zone pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 30103(b). Boundary adjustments made pursuant to this subchapter shall be determinative for all purposes with respect to the California Coastal Act of 1976.

§ 13255.1. Request for Boundary Determination

Any request for a written determination by the Commission of the precise location of a particular parcel or area of land in relation to the boundary of the coastal zone shall be accompanied by payment of the fee set forth in Section 13055(b)(6).

§ 13255.~~1~~2. Request for Boundary Adjustment.

(a) The owner of the affected lot or parcel, the local government of jurisdiction, or the executive director of the commission may propose that the inland boundary of the coastal zone be adjusted to avoid bisecting any lot or parcel, or to conform the boundary to readily identifiable natural or manmade features. The request to adjust the boundary shall be made in writing to the commission.

(b) The request for a boundary adjustment shall be accompanied by sufficient information to enable the commission to determine whether the proposed adjustment is consistent with Public Resources Code Section 30103(b). This information shall include:

- (1) Name and address of the owner of the affected lot or parcel.
- (2) Names and addresses of all occupants of the affected lot or parcel.
- (3) A description and documentation of the applicant's legal interest in the affected lot or parcel.
- (4) Names and addresses of all owners and occupants of all lots or parcels wholly or partially within 100 feet of the affected lot or parcel and the addresses of all such lots or parcels;
- (5) A map of suitable scale to show the present and proposed location of the coastal zone boundary, all lots or parcels within 100 feet of the affected lot or parcel, and the existence and location of all readily identifiable natural and manmade

**California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13255**

features;

(6) A description of the existing use of the affected lot or parcel and the nearby lands.

(7) A discussion of the reasons is for the request that the coastal zone boundary be adjusted.

(c) The person requesting the adjustment shall post a conspicuous notice of the proposed adjustment at the time the request is submitted to the commission. The form and location of the posted notice shall be similar to that required by Section 13054(b) for permit matters.

(d) The request for a boundary adjustment shall be accompanied by a filing and processing fee as set forth in Section 13055(b)(7). ~~to be paid by check or money order in an amount determined as follows:~~

~~—(1) Twenty five dollars (\$25) if the portion of the lot or parcel affected by the adjustment is less than or equal to five acres in area.~~

~~—(2) Fifty dollars (\$50) if the portion of the parcel affected by the adjustment is greater than five acres but less than or equal to forty acres in area.~~

~~—(3) One hundred dollars (\$100) if the portion of the parcel affected by the adjustment is greater than forty acres but less than or equal to one thousand acres in area.~~

~~—(4) Two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250) if the portion of the parcel affected by the adjustment is greater than one thousand acres in area.~~

The executive director of the commission may waive the filing and processing fee in full or in part where the request concerns the same lot or parcel considered for a previous boundary adjustment or permit application where no substantial staff work is required or where the request is made by the local government of jurisdiction.

§ 13255.23. Notification Requirements.

The person requesting the adjustment shall provide notice to affected parties, property owners and occupants of any parcel within 100 feet of any boundary of the affected parcel and to any other persons known to be interested in the proposed boundary adjustments. This notice shall comply with the requirements prescribed in Section 13054 for permit matters.

**California Coastal Commission
Proposed Amendments to §13576**

**ARTICLE 18. MAP REQUIREMENT AND BOUNDARY DETERMINATION
CRITERIA**

§ 13576. Map(s) of Areas of Commission Permit and Appeal Jurisdiction.

(a) In conjunction with final Local Coastal Program certification or the delegation of coastal development permit authority pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 30600.5, whichever occurs first, the Commission shall, after public hearing, adopt a map or maps of the coastal zone of the affected jurisdiction that portrays the areas where the Commission retains permit authority pursuant to Public Resources Code Sections 30603(a)(1) and (a)(2), or 30600.5(d). These maps shall be drawn based on the criteria for permit and appeal boundary determinations, set forth in Section 13577 below, and will serve as the official maps of the Commission's permit and appeal jurisdiction. The Commission, in consultation with the local government, shall update these maps from time to time, where changes occur in the conditions on which the adopted maps were based, or where it can be shown that the location of the mapped boundary does not adequately reflect the intended boundary criteria. Revisions of the adopted maps shall be based on precise boundary determinations made using the criteria set forth in Section 13577. The revised maps shall be filed with the affected jurisdiction within 30 days of adoption by the Commission. In addition, each adopted map depicting the permit and appeal jurisdiction shall include the following statement:

"This map has been prepared to show where the California Coastal Commission retains permit and appeal jurisdiction pursuant to Public Resources Code Sections 30519(b), 30603(a)(1) and (a)(2) and 30600.5(d). In addition, development may also be appealable pursuant to Public Resources Code Sections 30603(a)(3), (a)(4), and (a)(5). If questions arise concerning the precise location of the boundary of any area defined in the above sections, the matter should be referred to the local government and/or the Executive Director of the Commission for clarification and information. This plat may be updated as appropriate and may not include all lands where permit and appeal jurisdiction is retained by the Commission"

(b) In the case of local governments which have received Commission approval of their Phase III (implementation) Work Program and Budget prior to January 1, 1980, the permit and appeal area maps shall be adopted by the Commission prior to the certification becoming effective pursuant to Section 13547 of the Commission's regulations.

(c) Any request for a written determination for either (1) interpretation or revision of any boundary shown in any permit and appeal jurisdiction map approved pursuant to subsection (a), or (2) a determination of the precise location of a particular parcel or area of land in relation to any boundary shown on any such map, shall be accompanied by payment of the fee set forth in Section 13055(b)(6).